
 

Standards and General Purposes Committee agenda 

Date: Thursday 17 March 2022 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: The Oculus, Buckinghamshire Council, Gatehouse Road, Aylesbury HP19 8FF 

Membership: 

T Broom (Chairman), M Baldwin, R Carington, B Chapple OBE (Vice-Chairman), S Chhokar, 
P Gomm, T Green, S Lambert, R Matthews, H Mordue, C Oliver, L Smith BEM, M Smith and 
D Thompson 

Agenda Item 
 

Page No 

1 Apologies  
   
2 Minutes 3 - 8 
 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 2 

December 2021. 
 

 

3 Declarations of Interest  
 Members to declare any interests. 

 
 

4 Buckinghamshire Electoral Review 9 - 12 
 Please note:  Appendix 1 to the report (List of proposed Wards and 

underlying data and maps is ‘TO FOLLOW’ and will be published ASAP 
as a supplement and in advance of the meeting) 
 
In addition to the published Annexes, an interactive Ward map is also 
accessible here  
 

 

5 Date of next meeting  
 Thursday 14 April 2022 at 2.00pm   

 
 

 
If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of 
a disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support 
in place. 

https://buckscouncil.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=fc4893957d4e405381a0f2e3d3381975


For further information please contact: Clare Gray - democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk



 

 

Standards and General Purposes Committee minutes 

Minutes of the meeting of the Standards and General Purposes Committee held on 
Thursday 2 December 2021 in The Paralympic Room, Buckinghamshire Council, Gatehouse 
Road, HP19 8FF, commencing at 2.00 pm and concluding at 3.27 pm. 

Members present 

T Broom, M Baldwin, B Chapple OBE, T Green, S Lambert, H Mordue, C Oliver, L Smith BEM, 
M Smith and D Thompson 

Others in attendance 

C Gray 

Apologies 

R Carington, S Chhokar, P Gomm, R Matthews  

Agenda Item 

1 Minutes 
 RESOLVED That the minutes of the meeting held on 7th October 2021 be approved as 

a correct record. 
 

2 Declarations of Interest 
 There were no declarations of interest. 

 
3 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Report 
 The Committee received a report which summarised local government complaint 

decisions and outcomes for the year 2020-21. The report was initially presented to 
the Committee in July 2021 however, this was the updated version to include the 
report from the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman (LG&SCO) Annual 
Review Letter. The data in the report related to Buckinghamshire Council and the 
five legacy authorities.  
 
The Complaints and Improvement Manager and the Head of Information Manger 
reported the Ombudsman made determinations on 104 cases, this was a reduction 
from 147 cases reported the previous year. There were 17 cases upheld by the 
Ombudsman however, it was advised these might have been cases from the legacy 
authorities and not Buckinghamshire Council. The report also included a table 
showing Ombudsman upheld complaints for other unitary authorities in order to 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

 

offer a comparison with Buckinghamshire Council. Point 3 of the report highlighted 
the improvements and actions required by the Council in response to the Local 
Government & Social Care Ombudsman complaints. It was reported the Customer 
First Strategy which sought to champion the customer and allow a greater 
ownership of complaints by departments should improve processes. The 
Information Management Team were in the process of procuring a new case 
management system which would record cases across all processes, complaints and 
information requests. This would allow cases to be dealt with in line with the 
Ombudsman timeframe and enable a better management of workflow and 
escalation of problems where necessary. 
 
During discussion the following points were raised:- 
 

 A Member queried the reporting on complaints for both the unitary Council 
and legacy authorities given that the unitary authority had been in effect for 
longer than 18 months. In response, it was noted there was a time delay 
from the Ombudsman dealing and responding to the complaint which was 
the reason for the data being presented this way. It was reiterated that the 
new case management system would allow a more customer focused 
approach to dealing with complaints and solutions and lessons would be 
automated leading to embedded learning. This would enable better 
reporting on complaints to Management Team and future progress on 
service improvements. It was clarified there were 17 cases upheld by the 
Ombudsman and an internal process was underway to look at all areas 
relating to complaints.  

 A Member noted 104 complaints although fairly high, was still a reduction 
from the previous year reported. It was advised lessons learnt from the 
complaints should be applied to other departments in the Council and this 
Committee could report the progress of complaints to Cabinet Members.  

 The Head of Information Manager confirmed 17 of the cases could have 
potentially been upheld internally by the Council. It was confirmed most 
Stage 1 complaints should address the complainant’s issues and provide 
improvement opportunities for the departments. The complaints stage cost 
considerable time and money to the Council and it was proposed a heat 
mapping system would inform services where particular issues need to be 
proactively addressed. 

 A Member queried if the 17 cases upheld could be shown in future reports 
and if the Committee could be informed which cases they relate to. It was 
advised this would not be possible due to the time delay in reporting from 
the Ombudsman and the lack of case by case information provided by them. 
Another Member queried if the report only covered a 6-week period when 
the unitary authority was not in existence formally and if this period covered 
the 5 legacy authorities’ figures. It was also suggested the upheld cases 
should be reported to Cabinet Members and the Ombudsman’s remedial 
work for the cases should be reported also. The Head of Information 
Manager confirmed the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman 
Review Letter did not include the details of the upheld cases and therefore 

Page 4



 

 

the remedies for these complaints were not reported. However, it was 
confirmed the Council used its own internal case management system to 
keep track of complaint outcomes and remedial action.  

 A Member queried a recommendation by the Ombudsman to offer cash 
payments to complainants at earlier stages of their complaint and if this 
would be appropriate. The Head of Information Manager advised cash 
payments would not have been offered at the earlier stages of complaints 
however, it was a useful option to have available to service areas as an 
infrequent option to bring a conclusion to a complaint where relevant. 

 Another Member requested the data for the complaints upheld by the 
Ombudsman and advised the service areas could have a system to log 
incoming complaints and case review without necessarily requiring a case 
management software solution. They highlighted a corrective action project 
would be required before any case management system was implemented 
and requested the data for the number of outcomes since March 2021. In 
response the Complaints and Improvement Manager confirmed they did not 
have this data to hand and a case management software solution was 
necessary to pick up learning outcomes from complaints.  

 A Member advised the number of complaints sent to the Ombudsman was 
not a huge cause for concern however, the home to school transport 
complaint which was raised with the Ombudsman could have been reported 
to Cabinet Members sooner. The Service Director for Legal and Democratic 
Services confirmed the Ombudsman could ensure the Council publish the 
outcome publically.  
 

RESOLVED that the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Report be 
noted. 
 

4 Code of Conduct and Social Media Policy 
 The Committee received a report on the Code of Conduct and Social Media Policy. 

This report was produced after discussion at the Committee meeting in October 
where Members requested the social media guidance was linked to the Code of 
Conduct. Appendix A of the report set out the guidance to Councillors detailed in the 
Social Media Strategy and the Social Media Policy. The report recommended that 
the details in Appendix A of the report were annexed to the Code and referred to in 
the introduction of the Code through referencing the Social Media Protocol. The 
Service Director Legal and Democratic Services asked for Member comments on 
whether the update to the Code of Conduct to include the Social Media Policy were 
sufficient.  
 
During discussion the following points were made:- 
 

 A Member suggested the annex could be put in place for the time being and 
then incorporated into the body of the Code of Conduct at the next review of 
the Constitution.   

 A Member stated that Councillors should always consider they are speaking 
in their capacity as a Councillor and therefore any comments made on social 

Page 5



 

 

media could not be considered personal and separate to their role. They 
confirmed they welcomed the update to the guidance taking into account 
social media.  

 A Member queried if the update would be enshrined in the Constitution or if 
it was an update to guidance and the code. The Service Director confirmed if 
the update was incorporated into the Constitution it would be a lengthier 
process to change if required in the future as any changes to the Constitution 
had to be agreed by Full Council. It was confirmed updating the guidance 
would allow greater flexibility for any future changes. The Member also 
queried how Members would be informed of the update and whether an 
email would be sufficient or if training would be more appropriate. The 
Service Director agreed the social media update and further information 
could be provided for Members including possible training. It was suggested 
a short infomercial would be useful for Members.  

 A Member raised the Council’s corporate twitter account and the Service 
Director confirmed the Council was subject to the Social Media Strategy in 
relation to its social media accounts.   

 A Member asked for clarification on the difference between adding the 
complaint process as an Annex to the Code or Constitution. It was confirmed 
when a complaint was received the Monitoring Officer investigated the 
complaint in line with the guidance and protocol. The complaint was not 
dealt with any more severely if the guidance was enshrined in the 
Constitution. However, if the guidance was an annex to the Code of Conduct 
it could be changed in the future with greater flexibility.  

 The update was agreed by Members and it was confirmed the changes would 
not impinge on Members ability to raise issues or engage in political debate.   

 
RESOLVED that the Annex be added to the Code of Conduct to incorporate the 
Social Media Policy. 
 

5 Standards Complaints Update 
 The Committee received a verbal update from the Service Director for Legal and 

Democratic on the status of Member complaints received. The report was presented 
to the Committee in October where Members asked for an update regarding the 
speed at which complaints were being dealt with. It was advised a report would be 
brought to the next Committee meeting in April to advise on the nature of 
complaints and the timeframe in which they were dealt.  
 
The Service Director reported at the end of September this year there were 22 
active complaints against Members, with the majority relating to Parish Councillors. 
It was noted that 7 of these complaints related to one Councillor received from 
various complainants. The Committee were informed since September, 12 
complaints had been closed and there were 7 active complaints. Of these 7 
complaints 1 related to a Buckinghamshire Council Member with the rest relating to 
Parish Councillors. There were 2 complaints at the initial stage, 4 at Stage one and 1 
outstanding at Stage three. The Stage three complaint would be resolved shortly. 
The Service Director reported there were discussions internally to address managing 

Page 6



 

 

and responding to complaints in a timelier fashion however, it was noted that good 
progress had been made in responding to outstanding complaints. 
 
A Member commended the service area for the swift response in dealing with the 
complaints after Members had queried this at the previous Committee. 
 
It was proposed by a Member that the reporting on complaints could form part of 
the regular Work Programme brought to this Committee and the service area should 
make use of the data and information available to them as part of their reports. The 
Committee agreed an update at each Committee on the status of Member 
complaints would be useful.                            
 
RESOLVED that an update on standards complaints would be added to the Work 
Programme for each Committee meeting. 
 

6 Constitution Working Group (update) 
 The Service Director for Legal and Democratic Services reported the Constitution 

Working Group meeting took place on 22nd November. The Working Group 
discussed suggestions for changes to the Constitution made by this Committee. 
There were a number of points discussed at the Working Group including: 

 Membership of Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 Permission in Principle Applications and the ability to call these in. 

 The guidance provided to Members for site visits. 

 Proposals for changes to the Licencing Committee regarding street consents. 

 Allowances/substitutes for Licencing Sub-Committee  

 Cabinet procedural rules and clarification regarding the number of questions 
Members were permitted to ask at these meetings 

 Changes to the notice of questions for Select Committees. 

 An amendment to Chief Officers areas of responsibility  

 The terms of reference for Community Boards  

 More clarity regarding access to information raised by Members during 
training.   

 
It was confirmed by the Chairman that any points raised in this Committee would be 
brought to the attention of the Working Group for discussion. 
 
During discussion the following points were made:-  
 

 A Member sought clarification on speaking arrangements at Full Council 
meetings, including on the length of speeches made by the Leader of the 
Council, the Leader of the largest opposition group and by other Members. 

 A Member commented in relation to the Full Council meeting they thought 
new Members should be prioritised to speak at the meeting. Further clarity 
on this issue would be preferable going forward. Another Member confirmed 
this was a discretionary power of the Chairman. A concern was also raised 
that many of the Councillors who were new to the role should be afforded 
more time to speak at meetings. 

Page 7



 

 

 A Member stated that in the past Members would be consulted on agenda 
timings and breaks during meetings. They suggested the Full Council 
meetings could be held at a more suitable time, with breaks and timing 
allocations for speakers could be enforced.   

 In addition, there was a concern that motions were moved on too quickly in 
meetings without debate and if this could be addressed in the Constitution. A 
Member commented that a previous Motion put to Full Council,  where 
there had been no debate, had been referred to the relevant Committee for 
discussion.  

 A Member suggested questions on the Cabinet Members report could be 
written and submitted prior to the Council meeting.  
 

It was confirmed these points would be raised with the Constitution Working 
Group for them to consider and discuss. The Service Director Legal and 
Democratic Services commented that he would circulate the guide to procedures 
for Full Council to all Members as a reminder.  

 
RESOLVED that the update on the Constitution Working Group be noted and that 
the points raised at this meeting be referred to the next Working Group for 
discussion. 
 

7 Work Programme 
 The Work Programme was noted by the Committee.  

 
The next meeting on 14th April 2022 would include an update on member 
complaints. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

 

Standards and General Purposes Committee 

Date:     Thursday 17 March 2022 

Title:     Electoral Review of Buckinghamshire – Pattern of Wards 

Relevant councillor(s):   All Councillors 

Author and/or contact officer:  Nick Graham, Service Director – Legal and Democratic 

Services  

Ward(s) affected:   All Wards 

Recommendations:  (1) To approve a draft submission, in principle, to the 

Local Government Boundary Commission for England on 

a future pattern of wards for Buckinghamshire Council 

based on the approach in paragraph 4 and Annex 1; and 

(2) To delegate the finalising of the draft submission, 
based on this proposal, to the Service Director for Legal 
and Democratic Services, in consultation with the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Committee and in 
liaison as necessary with the Commission; and 

(3) To recommend that Council endorses the proposal 

as the basis of the Council’s formal submission, at this 

Stage of the Electoral Review process; and 

(4) That the Electoral Review Working Group of this 

Committee continues to meet as necessary, to consider 

any ongoing liaison with, or proposals from, the 

Commission at further stages of the Review process. 

Reason for decision:  To enable the Council to respond to the Local 

Government Boundary Commission for England on the 

second stage of the electoral review of Buckinghamshire 

Council. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

 

1. Executive summary 

1.1 The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) has begun a 
consultation on the second stage of the electoral review of Buckinghamshire Council. 
The LGBCE is seeking views on a pattern of wards that should apply from the 2025 
local election.   

 

1.2 This follows the previous consultation on ‘council size’ by the LGBCE, which is now 
minded to recommend a membership of 98 councillors.  Proposals are therefore 
being sought on a pattern of wards equivalent (so far as possible) to that number.  

 

1.3 The consultation runs until the 4 April. The LGBCE would be willing for Full Council 
formally to approve a submission at its scheduled meeting on 27 April. However, the 
Commission would like to receive at least a draft proposal by the end of 4 April. 

 

1.4 An Electoral Review Working Group of this Committee has met twice, once online 
(24 February) and once in person (3 March) to work up a set of draft proposals for 
consideration by this Committee.  On the conclusion of the Consultation, the LGBCE 
will consider all representations, determine its own proposed pattern of wards and 
then consult again on its proposal.   

 

1.5 The LGBCE was invited to deliver briefings to all Buckinghamshire Councillors, and to 
parish and town councils, on the statutory criteria for a review. These took place on 
28 February and 7 March for this Council, and 2 March and 9 March for parish and 
town councils. 

2. The Working Group – objective: 

2.1 The Working Group was asked to develop a response to the consultation, making a 
recommendation to the Standards & General Purposes Committee as to a preferred 
pattern of wards.  The Group has had regard to the three statutory criteria outlined 
below in paragraph 3.  The Group recognised that no criteria ‘outweighed’ the other 
and that a balance of them was key.  The Group also considered the electorate 
figures published by the LGBCE on their Buckinghamshire consultation pages. 

 

2.2 The proposal, and the rationale, is explained in paragraph 4.  
 

3. Pattern of wards – criteria: 
 
3.1 The Working Group has had regard to the LGBCE’s published guidance on How to 

propose a pattern of wards. The three statutory criteria for determining a pattern of 
wards are: 

 

i) Delivering electoral equality for local voters – ensuring that each local 
councillor represents roughly the same number of electors so that the value of 
a vote is the same regardless of where a person lives in the local authority 

Page 10

https://www.lgbce.org.uk/all-reviews/south-east/buckinghamshire/buckinghamshire-council
https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/lgbce/Corporate%20Documents/Guidance/How%20to%20propose%20a%20pattern%20of%20wards%20(2018).pdf
https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/lgbce/Corporate%20Documents/Guidance/How%20to%20propose%20a%20pattern%20of%20wards%20(2018).pdf


 

 

area.  Given the total forecast electorate of 443,064 by 2027, the average 
number of electors per councillor, for this review, is 1 councillor per 4,521 
electors.  The Group has therefore sought to keep within +/- 10% of that 
notional figure. 

ii) Reflecting the interests and identities of local communities – establishing 
electoral arrangements which, as far as possible, maintain local ties and where 
boundaries are easily identifiable. 

iii) Promoting effective and convenient local government – ensuring that the new 
wards can be represented effectively by their elected representative(s), allows 
the authority to conduct its business effectively; and adequately reflects the 
electoral cycle of the council. 

 

4. Proposal and rationale: 
 
4.1 The Working Group has proposed a pattern of 50 wards based, largely, on two-

member representation for each ward, achieving 98 councillors overall.  The list of 
proposed wards and their names is attached at Annex 1.  Maps showing the 
proposed wards, and underlying electorate data, will also be made available to the 
Committee ahead of the meeting. The Group believes the proposal provides a sound 
basis, reflecting the balance of the statutory criteria.  

 

4.2 The Working Group has been mindful that ‘one size’ does not fit all. As a new unitary 
authority, it is important that the pattern of wards supports communities and 
provides the best possible reflection of community identity and effective 
government.  This has resulted in a proposal that includes a mix of one- and two-
member representation per ward. 

 

4.3 In certain cases, the existing ward structures were in any event not sustainable, due 
to projected development, as the 2027 forecast electorate demonstrates. As such, 
the proposals include several suggested changes to boundaries, having regard to 
community identity and effective governance.   These are marked accordingly in the 
Annex to this report. 

 

4.4 The review represents an opportunity to provide a stable basis for electoral 
representation following a period of considerable structural change in local 
governance across Buckinghamshire.  In framing its proposals, the Working Group 
has not thought it necessary to disregard existing ward arrangements where these 
already reflect good community identity. Equally it did not simply follow existing 
structures as an easy rule.  

 

4.5 Rather, each ward has been proposed based on the best balance of the three 
statutory criteria.  That said, the Group is aware that there are a small number of 
areas where the Group believes further detailed work on certain boundaries is 
potentially necessary to achieve better community identity.  The Group is 
recommending that the Council engages with the LGBCE, and stakeholders, on these 

Page 11



 

 

proposals, with a view to working them up in more detail, particularly in the next 
phase of the consultation.  

 

4.6 The Group has been mindful that Buckinghamshire is also a member-led authority 
which sees its democratic relationship with the electorate and local communities as 
pivotal to Buckinghamshire’s future.  This perspective has been important from the 
commencement of the Council last year:  for example as expressed through our 16 
innovative community boards, which provide action-based local forums where 
Buckinghamshire councillors meet regularly with parish and town councils, 
community groups and local stakeholders to identify key local priorities.  

 

4.7 The Group considers it important that the wards have sufficient member resilience 
to sustain this community-based approach. As such, the Group believes the 
proposals are consistent with sustaining the existing momentum and provide an 
effective means of contributing to local governance. 

 

4.8 The Group has also been mindful that the Council’s experience of multi-member 
wards, since the inception of the Council, has been broadly positive, with certain 
geographies and community dynamics particularly benefitting from this collaborative 
approach, regardless of political affiliation.    As such, having reviewed the basis of 
the wards and the communities within them, the Group has felt it right to continue 
this, where appropriate, on the basis of consolidating community identity and 
governance.  

 

5. Next steps 
 
5.1 If the Committee is minded to endorse the proposed pattern of wards, and the 

approach outlined in this report, then a draft submission will be made to the 
Commission, in principle, by the end of 4 April 2022.  Council will be asked to 
endorse it as the Council’s formal submission at the Council meeting on 27 April 
2022. 

 

5.2 Thereafter, during April, May and June 2022, the LGBCE will consider all submissions, 
undertake any research on the ground in Buckinghamshire and potentially undertake 
further localised consultation before determining its own proposal.  The Group 
believes it will be important for the Council to continue to liaise closely with the 
Commission during that phase. 

 

5.3 From 5 July to 12 September 2022, the LGBCE will commence consultation on its 
proposal during which this Council will be able to comment and work constructively 
with the Commission. The final report from the Commission, outlining its 
recommendation to Parliament, will be issued on 29 November 2022. 

 

5.4 The pattern of wards would not become effective until the 2025 Buckinghamshire 
elections. 

 

Page 12



Annex 1 – Warding Proposals, Buckinghamshire Council 
 
Key: 
• Summary:  A council membership of 98 councillors.  50 wards (48 with two-member 

representation; 2 with one-member representation).   

• Red lettering: Variance above/below 10% of the average ‘electors per councillor’ ratio 
(4,521). Further work needed. 

• Yellow highlight: Ward with some changes to boundary/name 
 

 Proposed ward/name Electorate 
2027 

No. 
of  
Cllrs 

Variance 

1.  Abbey  9679 2 7% 

2.  Amersham & Chesham Bois  8243 2 -9% 

3.  Aston Clinton & Weston Turville  10640 2 18% 

4.  Aylesbury East  8632 2 -5% 

5.  Aylesbury North  8492 2 -6% 

6.  Aylesbury North West  10038 2 11% 

7.  Aylesbury South East  9235 2 2% 

8.  Aylesbury South West  9155 2 1% 

9.  Aylesbury West  8089 2 -11% 

10.  Beaconsfield  9330 2 3% 

11.  Bernwood  9860 2 9% 

12.  Bierton & Wing  10322 2 14% 

13.  Booker, Cressex & Castlefield  9157 2 1% 

14.  Buckingham East  9731 2 8% 

15.  Buckingham West  9390 2 4% 

16.  Chalfont St Giles  8792 2 -3% 

17.  Chalfont St Peter  8505 2 -6% 

18.  Chesham  8274 2 -8% 

19.  Chess Valley  8508 2 -6% 

20.  Chiltern Ridges  8536 2 -6% 

21.  Chiltern Villages  9192 2 2% 

22.  Cliveden  8100 2 -10% 

23.  Denham & Wexham 8896 2 -2% 

24.  Downley  8792 2 -3% 

25.  Farnham Common & Burnham Beeches  8748 2 -3% 

26.  Flackwell Heath, Littte Marlow & Marlow South East  8632 2 -5% 

27.  Gerrards Cross & Hedgerley  8213 2 -9% 

28.  Great Brickhill  9967 2 10% 

29.  Great Missenden  8240 2 -9% 

30.  Grendon Underwood  9814 2 9% 

31.  Hazlemere  7916 2 -12% 

Page 13

Appendix 



32.  Iver  9306 2 3% 

33.  Ivinghoe  8947 2 -1% 

34.  Little Chalfont & Amersham Common  8333 2 -8% 

35.  Marlow  8819 2 -2% 

36.  Penn Wood & Old Amersham  8803 2 -3% 

37.  Ridgeway East  8910 2 -1% 

38.  Ridgeway West  8572 2 -5% 

39.  Ryemead & Micklefield  9567 2 6% 

40.  Stoke Poges  4389 1 -3% 

41.  Stone & Waddesdon  10050 2 11% 

42.  Terriers & Amersham Hill  9308 2 3% 

43.  The Risboroughs  9420 2 4% 

44.  The Wooburns, Bourne End & Hedsor  9354 2 3% 

45.  Totteridge & Bowerdean  8411 2 -7% 

46.  Tylers Green & Loudwater  8792 2 -3% 

47.  Watermead & Buckingham Park  4619 1 2% 

48.  Wendover Halton & Stoke Mandeville  9647 2 7% 

49.  West Wycombe  8638 2 -4% 

50.  Winslow  10061 2 11% 

 Grand Total 443064  
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Buckinghamshire Electoral Review
	Annex 1 - Summary of Ward proposals FINAL


